CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee** held on Thursday, 2nd February, 2017 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor J Saunders (Chairman) Councillor B Dooley (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, G Baxendale, S Brookfield, E Brooks, C Chapman, S Edgar, L Jeuda, G Merry, A Moran, S Pochin, J Rhodes and L Smetham

64 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Mick Warren.

65 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED- That the minutes of the meeting held on the 12 January 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

66 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Stuart Gardiner declared a non pecuniary interest in connection with the Local Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) on the grounds that he was a member of the board.

67 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of the existence of a party whip.

68 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak.

69 LOCAL SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD

Robert Templeton, Chairman of the Cheshire East Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) presented the Cheshire East SAB Annual Report to the Committee.

Robert explained the purpose of a SAB was to help and safeguard adults with care and support needs. This was achieved through:

- adherence to statutory guidance and the Care Act 2014;
- person-centred safeguarding practices and being outcome focused;
- partnership working;
- accountability through timely and proportionate responses from agencies when abuse or neglect have occurred; and

• monitored safeguarding practices.

The SAB had three core duties: it developed and published a strategic plan, published an annual report and commissioned safeguarding adult reviews (SAR's) for any cases that met the criteria.

The Annual Report for 2015/16 covered the first year of operation under The Care Act 2014.

Robert gave the Committee a brief summary of actions that the SAB had focussed on for 2017. These included the development of sustainable performance measures, further partnership working and implementation of the recommendations from the Peer Review in May.

The Committee explained that its main future interest in annual reports of the safeguarding board would be in relation to outcome based performance measures. Robert agreed to return to the Committee at a mid-term point for an update and further discussion on SAB progress against outcomes.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That Robert Templeton be invited back to attend the Committee in September 2017 to review outcomes at the mid term point;
- (b) That the Strategic Housing Manager be requested to invite the Director of Public Health to join the officer working group on HMOs to ensure that Health implications are taken into account in the group's deliberations.

70 COMMUNITY COHESION STRATEGY/SAFER CHESHIRE EAST PARTNERSHIP

Steph Cordon, Communities Manager attended the meeting and gave a presentation on the Safer Cheshire East Partnership (SCEP). On the current Work Programme, the Committee had included an item to develop the Community Cohesion Strategy.

The report circulated with the agenda related to a piece of work in Crewe that had developed out of the Connected Communities Framework. The Framework outlined the Council's approach to connect with communities and the voluntary and faith sector. The Framework was divided into five themes:

- connected to people;
- connected to services;
- connected to neighbourhoods;
- connected to voluntary, community and faith sector organisations; and
- connected to decision making.

Members referred to issues connected to some areas within the Borough containing significant numbers of houses of multiple occupation (HMO).

Mark Nedderman advised there was an officer led Task and Finish Group that was gathering evidence to review the licensing of HMO's, which would report to the Environment and Regeneration Committee.

Insofar as the Safer Cheshire East Partnership (SCEP) Annual Strategic Assessment was concerned, Steph informed the Committee that there were several new and emerging issues identified in Cheshire East, these included psychoactive substances, radicalisation (which included animal rights protest groups), scams/mass marketing, human trafficking and modern slavery. Steph advised there had been concerns about the issue of human trafficking.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That an item to review Connecting Communities be added to the Work Programme;
- (b) That a future meeting of this Committee be held at The Lighthouse in Crewe.
- (c) That an item be included in the work programme to scrutinise Human Trafficking on 25th April.
- (d) That a Communities departmental organisational chart be circulated to the Committee.

71 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee reviewed the recent revisions to its work programme.

RESOLVED-

- (a) That the report be received and noted.
- (b) That a date be set for the Committee to scrutinise ESAR.
- (c) That a date be set to review outcomes of the North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) report against the Committee's original recommendations.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.09 pm

Councillor J Saunders (Chairman)